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CITY OF SANTA BARBARA


COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT

AGENDA DATE:
April 10, 2012 
TO:
Mayor and Councilmembers

FROM:
Planning Division, Community Development Department

SUBJECT:
Average Unit-Size Density (AUD) Incentive Program 
RECOMMENDATION:
That Council initiate amendments to Title 28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code related to implementation of the Average Unit-Size Density (AUD) Incentive Program.
DISCUSSION:
On February 28, 2012, the City Council and Planning Commission held a joint work session regarding the Phase I Implementation Program for Plan Santa Barbara.  Projects included in Phase I are necessary to successfully implement the recently adopted General Plan Update.  Among these projects is the Average Unit-Size Density (AUD) Incentive Program.  The AUD program allows increased residential density incentives and reduced parking requirements in order to promote smaller units and buildings.  The AUD program will replace the existing Variable Density program, and will require amendments to the Zoning Ordinance.  
The AUD program ordinance amendment process is estimated to take approximately 15 months to complete.  Planning Staff will take the lead in implementing this program, with support from Transportation and the City Attorney.  Upon adoption of the implementing ordinance and consistent with General Plan direction, the AUD program will be in effect for eight years or once 250 units have been developed in the High Density areas, whichever occurs sooner.  Before the eight years expire, the Council will consider whether to extend or modify the AUD program.  

AUD Program Components 
The AUD incentive program is designed to encourage smaller units through the application of increased densities based on average unit sizes.  The smaller the average unit size, the greater the densities allowed.  Increased densities would be permitted in most multi-family and commercial zones under the following two land use designations:  Medium-High Density Residential and High Density Residential.  
The Medium-High Density Residential designation serves as a transition from low and medium density, all-residential density neighborhoods to commercial centers.  This density tier is intended to continue to allow density incentives similar to those allowed under the Variable Density program, but with smaller units.  The density range allowed in the Medium-High Density Residential areas is 15-27 dwelling units per acre (du/ac).  
The High Density Residential designations are located in and around the Downtown, Milpas and La Cumbre Plaza/Five Points, all close to transit and within easy walking or biking distance to shopping and entertainment. The High Density Residential designation is 28-36 du/ac and also encourages smaller units and smaller buildings.
The Priority Housing Overlay is intended to encourage the production of rental, employer sponsored, and co-operative housing.  Again, these increased densities serve to encourage smaller, compact development in support of additional workforce housing and reduced vehicle miles traveled. The overlay applies to the High Density areas as well as the Haley/Cota, which is designated as Medium-High. This third tier allows densities ranging from 49-63 du/ac.  
The Land Use Element provides examples of average unit size ranges that will serve as the metric to encourage smaller units.  For example, in the Medium-High Density areas the unit size range is 1,450 sq ft for the lowest density allowed (15 du/ac), to 805 sq ft for the highest density allowed (27 du/ac).  Likewise in the High Density Residential designated areas, the range is 1,245 sq ft for the lowest density allowed (28 du/ac), to 970 sq ft for the high density (36 du/ac).  The additional units built under the Priority Overlay (beyond the applicable AUD density incentive) would be restricted to 600 square feet or less.  

None of the unit sizes identified under each respective tier are finalized and will need to be further analyzed and refined as the ordinance amendments are being developed.

Another component of the AUD program is the reduction of parking standards.  The AUD program will permit a one parking space per unit minimum to encourage affordability and decrease building mass.  A key finding from the AIA Design Charrette held in July 2011 was the role of parking in determining affordability and building size.  This exercise revealed that reduced parking requirements, such as those currently allowed in the Central Business District, are necessary to achieve increased densities and reduced building heights as intended by the AUD program.  
Interim Process 
As discussed at the February 28th Joint Council and Planning Commission work session, residential development projects submitted prior to the adoption of the AUD program will be processed and reviewed under the City’s current rules and regulations.  However, projects proposing residential densities that meet the intent of the AUD program could be allowed to proceed with zoning modifications.  Both Council and Planning Commission expressed support for this approach.

Also suggested was the use of a concept review at City Council and/or Planning Commission for projects requesting these types of zoning modifications.  This approach would provide applicants early feedback regarding the proposed project and requested modifications, thereby clarifying expectations and expediting the review process.  Most likely the requested zoning modifications would be for density, flexibility on open space design, setbacks and parking.
Staff requests additional discussion and direction from Council regarding the use of modifications and concept reviews as the criteria for an interim process to implement the AUD program, while Ordinance amendments are being developed and processed.  
Assistance and Outreach
The AUD components, as adopted, were initially developed by staff in collaboration with the AIA and development community.  The next step in the process will require formulating the actual mechanics to translate this policy into practical ordinance standards.  The AIA and builders have volunteered to continue to assist Staff with development of these mechanics.  Staff supports this offer, and believes their expertise and knowledge will be helpful when working out the details of the AUD program implementation.  
Once the mechanics of the program have been developed, concept reviews will be conducted at the Planning Commission and design reviews boards, followed by a community workshop that will pick-up where the AIA Design Charrette left-off last July.  Staff anticipates additional public input at hearings with the City Council, Ordinance Committee and Planning Commission, as the AUD program proceeds through the formal review and approval process. See Attachment 1, Draft Scope of Work. 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

The Zoning Ordinance Amendments for the AUD Incentive Program do not require allocation of funds.  The Program can be implemented with existing staff resources and volunteer assistance from the community.
ATTACHMENTS:
1.
AUD Draft Scope of Work

2. 
AUD Text from Land Use Element

3.
Policy LG6 Text from Land Use Element

4.
AUD Summary Table

5.
AUD Density Tiers
6.
AUD Map from Land Use Element 
PREPARED BY:
John Ledbetter, Principal Planner

Irma Unzueta, Project Planner
SUBMITTED BY:
Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator
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